Wh‘iie House

Denies New
Tapes ‘Gap’
Sk

By George Lardner Jr.

Washington Post Staff Writer
Watergate prosecutors dis-
closed yesterday that 19 min-
utes of conversation are
missing from the tape re-
cording of a meeting be-
tween President Nixon and
former aide John D. Ehrlich-

man on March 20, 1973.

The prosecutors called it a
“gap.” /The White House
strenuously denied the de-
scription, and said there was
a perfectly innocent explana-
tion for the long stretch of
missing conversation.

Mr. Nixon’s chief defense
lawyer, James D. St. Clair,
said the recording machine
simply ran out of tape dur-
ing the conversation in
question. He said it took
Secret Service technicians
manning the equipment that
long to notice that the reel
had run out and install a
new one in its place.

Declaring that it was
“misleading” to call this “a
gap,” St. Clair said he in-
tended to register “a sharp
complaint” with  Special

See GAP, A12, Col. 1

GAP, From Al

Prosecutor Leon Jaworski
about the matter.

Assistant Special Prose-
cutor Richard Ben-Veniste
disclosed the missing 19
minutes in the tape at the
windup of a contentious
hearing yesterday morning
before U.S. District Court
Judge John J. Sirica.

The House Judiiary .Com-
mittee has subpoenaed the
recording as part of its in-
vestigation into the final de-
livery of “hush money” to
Watergate conspirator E.
Howard Hunt’s lawyer on
the night of March 21, 1973.

The President’s lawyers
have maintained that the
payment had already been
set in motion before Mir.
Nixon was informed on
March 21 of Hunt’s “black-
mail” demands. If Mr. Nixon

had known of Hunt’s de- -

man on March 20, a key por-
tion of his defense against
charges that he took part
in the cover-up conspiracy
would erumble.

Watergate prosecutors
have not subpoenaed the
March 20 Nixon-Ehrlichman
tapes themselves, but Ben-
Veniste said it had been
“the subject of a compro-
mise offer” by Mr. Nixon’s
lawyers in the prolonged
dispute over the President’s
tapes.

Ben-Veniste cited the long
blank spot in protesting the

refusal of White House law-

vers to determine whether
any of the 64 recordings
that the prosecutors have
subpoenaed for the Water-
gate cover-up trial did not
exist.

St. Clair told the prosecu-
tors in a May 30 letter that

- such a check had been made

for the conversations that
the House Judiciary Com-
mittee had subpoenaed, but
indicated that he saw no
merit in undertaking the
same “tame-consuming task”
for the tapes Jaworski wants.

At the hearing before
Judge Sirica, Ben-Veniste
also reported that on at
least one occasion in the
White House’s production of
edited transcripts of some
of Mr. Nixon’s conversations,
“an original tape was torn
and to some extent, man-
gled.”

Prosecutor James Neal,
the head of the task force

‘prosecuting the alleged Wa-

tergate cover-up conspiracy,
added still another protest.

A\

He said that St. Clair's ap-
parent offer Monday before
the Supreme Court to sur-
render the tapes of 20 of
the conversations that the
White House has made pub-
li‘c in expurgated form was
“illusory” and meaningless.

All the White House has
offered, Judge Sirica was
told, is to provide presuma-
bly dubbed recordings re-
producing the White House
edited transcripts word for
word, and no more. If half a
sentence is left out in the
transeript, Neal said, then
that half sentence would be
left out in the tapes the
White House has offered to
produce without further ac-
tion from the Supreme
Court.

Neal said that Watergate
prosecutors learned all this
only after Monday’s Su-
preme Court hearing.

White House lawyer Joihn
J. Chester replied that it
was only “the Special Prose-
cutor’s hunger for the Presi-
dent’s private and confiden-
tial conversations” that led
them to think they would
get the ° complete tapes
rather than edited versions.
He said St. Clair had never
meant to offer anything
more.

“We though we were mak-

~ing an offer of substantial

value,” Chester said. “We
cannot go beyond the offer.”

Judge Sirica, however,
said he saw no merit in lis-

. tening to a string of edited

. tapes that might omit cru-

cial remarks, perhaps in-
cluding statements that
might tend to exonerate the
Watergate cover-up defend-
ants. Lawyers for several of
the defendants, including
William G. Hundley who
represents former Attorney
General John N. Mitcheil,
strongly agreed.

“It’s important to get the
originals,” Hundley said. He
said it would be “an awful
waste” of Sirica’s time to
take up the White House
proposal. & ‘
~ Overruling Chester’s pro-
tests, the judge indicated
his agreement and approved
the request of Watergate
prosecutors to send a tran-
seript of yesterday’s hearing
to the Supreme Court. Neal
said this would let the jus-
tices know that the dispute
before them still involves 64
subpoenaed recordings
rather than just 44.

“m not trying to inter-
fere with the Supreme



Court,” Sirica said, “but I do
think that counsel’s request
is a fair one under the cir-
cumstances.”

Ben-Veniste spoke up near
the close of the hearing. In-
troducing a series of letters
into the record, he said he
wanted to underscore Jawor-
ski’s attempts since May 22
to find out which of the 64
conversations might not ex-
ist on tape.

Judge Sirica had ordered
Mr. Nixon to surrender all
the recordings on May 20.
Two days later, Jaworski
wrote St. Clair at the White
House in light of what the
Special Prosecutor .called
“the regrettable experience”
last fall when the White
House reported that two
tapes of conversations sub-
poenaed by the Watergate
grand jury did not exist and
that there was an 18%-min-
ute gap on another. :

Jaworski asked in the let-

ter for a report on what new
tapes might not exist. He
also asked the White House
to set aside the precise con-
versations covered by his
subpoena ‘“in a manner de-
signed to insure their secu-
rity.”

St. Clair replied on May
30 that he saw no need for
either step. He said he con-
sidered “existing security
arrangements” for all of Mr.
Nixon’s tapes “quite satis-
tactory.”

Apparently hoping to en-
list Judge Sirica’s help, Ben-
Veniste said that prosecu-
tors had learned that omne
of the taped conversations
subpoenaed by the House
Judiciary Committee—which
the White House has check-
ed—“has a gap of approx-
imately 19 minutes.”

Ben-Veniste identified the
conversation at issue as one
between Mr. Nixon and
Ehrlichman on the late. af-

United Press Intérnational

Watergate assistant prosecutors Richard Ben-Veniste and Jill Volner arrive at court.




